ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 22, 2015

9:00 a. m
VEVMBERS PRESENT
Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senator Lesil MQiire
Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Charlie Huggi ns
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representati ve Max G uenberg
COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW BALLOT MEASURE NO. 2 (13PSUM - AN ACT TO TAX AND
REGULATE THE PRODUCTI ON~ SALE~ AND USE OF MARI JUANA.

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REQ STER

DR. TI M H NTERBERGER, Chairman

Canpai gn to Regul ate Marijuana |ike Al cohol in Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overview of Ballot Measure 2.

BRUCE SCHULTE, board menber

The Coalition for Responsible Cannabis Legislation

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overvi ew of Ball ot Measure 2.

RACHELLE YEUNG Legi sl ative Anal yst
State Policies Departnent

Mari j uana Policy Project

Washi ngton, D.C.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- January 22, 2015



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided supportive testinony for Ballot
Measure 2.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:00: 18 AM

CHAIR BILL STOLTZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Committee neeting to order at 9:00 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators MQ@ire, Welechowski, Vice-Chair Coghill,
and Chair Stoltze.

Overview. Ballot Measure No. 2 (13PSUM - An Act to Tax and
Regul ate the Production, Sale, and Use of Marij uana.

9: 00: 38 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE announced that the commttee is commencing the
review of the Ballot Measure No. 2, which is soon to be an act
or in other words a law. He said the conmttee is deliberating
as is always done with a bill. He noted that the sponsors of the
bill are the initiative sponsors: Dr. Tim Hinterberger and Bruce
Schulte. He added that Rachelle Yeung has been asked to testify
and augnent the sponsors' testinony.

9:03:11 AM

DR, TIM H NTERBERGER, Chairnman, Canpaign to Regulate Marijuana
like Alcohol in Alaska (CRMLA), Anchorage, Al aska, explained
that he is one of the primary sponsors of Ballot Measure No. 2.
He added that he is a faculty nmenber of the nedical school at
the University of Al aska-Anchorage. He noted that he has been
working on pronoting narijuana |egalization for the 2000 and
2004 canpaigns. He explained that the voters approved the
initiative as foll ows:

Bal | ot Measure No. 2 clarifies Alaska's contradictory
marijuana |laws, nmeking it legal for adults 21 and over
to possess and cultivate |inmted anobunts of marijuana;
it also replaces the existing underground, unregul ated
marijuana market with taxed and regul ated businesses.
The state is required to establish a system that
allows adults 21 and over to purchase marijuana in a
| egal regul ated setting.

In general, our nessage to you today is that we
understand the inportance of the task that the state
has before it. There wll be challenges, but also
opportunities, opportunities for a regul atory

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- January 22, 2015



framework that Alaska can be proud of and that can
serve as a nodel for the rest of the country as other
states join Alaska, Oegon, Colorado, and Washi ngton
in repealing the failed policies of prohibition. W
can protect the public health and safety while
recogni zing that creating a new approach to marijuana
will bring benefits to the state as well.

| want to say that we see this primarily as a
regul atory issue given the nine nonth tineline and the
t renmendous anmount of work needed to be done well after
adjournment of this legislative session. W drafted
the initiative with the intent that the mpjority of
the work would be done by a rulemaking authority,
whether it be the Al coholic Beverage Control (ABC
Board, a separate marijuana-control board or a hybrid
sol uti on.

9: 05: 26 AM

Quite frankly, we feel that Legislature's role would
be quite limted; with that said, we do recogni ze that
the Legislature can have a role to play in the process
and there is an interest in doing that. W the
sponsors of the law will be staying attentive during
i npl ementati on and hope to serve as a resource to this
committee and others in representing the intent of the
initiative and helping you to avoid considering
legislation that mght violate the intent of the
initiative and the will of the voters.

Along with ne today | have Bruce Schulte and Rachelle
Yeung. Bruce is an Anchorage businessman and pil ot who
served alongside ne as co-chair of the Canmpaign to
Regul ate Marijuana |like Alcohol, he is a board nenber
and spokesperson for the Coalition for Responsible
Cannabis Legislation (CRCL), one of the canpaign's
partners, and wll be speaking on behalf of CRCL
today. Rachelle is a legislative analyst wth the
Marijuana Policy Project (MPP) where she supports
activists and legislators interested in reformng
their owmn marijuana laws in nearly 20 different states
and territories as varied as Alaska, Maryland, and the
U.S. Virgin Islands; she received her degree from the
University of Colorado Law School where she worked in
marijuana policy at Vicente Sederberg, one of the
leading marijuana law firns in the country. MP is
anot her partner-organi zati on of ours; they were

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 22, 2015



founded in 1995 and are currently the |argest
nonprofit in the US. that's focused solely on ending
marijuana prohibition. Rachelle is here to provide

addi ti onal | egal and policy expertise to the
conmi ttee.
9:07: 10 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL stated that there are many things in the
initiative that the Legislature wll have to do that Dr.

Hi nterberger may have contenplated and one pertains to Al aska's
out-of-synch marijuana statutes for the sale and wuse of
marijuana. He pointed out that the Legislature will have to get
sone of the crimnal descriptions in-line with the initiative

He said the expectation is under 21 years of age would be a
|l egal prohibition. He asserted that one of the things the
Legislature will struggle with is how to establish the |egal
| evel s of inpairnment and noted that arbitrary driving inpairnent
| evel s have been set for alcohol. He asked what the sponsors'
anticipation was for setting marijuana driving-inpairmnment
| evel s.

DR. HI NTERBERGER pointed out that marijuana use is not new to
Al aska because there already is a substantial amount of use. He
noted that |aw enforcenent already has experience in dealing
with marijuana driving inpairnent. He asserted that whatever is
wor king now for |aw enforcenment would continue to work equally
wel |l under a regulated legal situation. He offered that in the
future there will be the likelihood that additional technica
solutions will be available to detect marijuana levels in a
person suspected of inpairnent.

9:09: 13 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL stated that he did not know if |aw enforcenent
in Al aska had the ability to test for marijuana |levels. He asked
if Colorado or Washington have been able to conme up with a
testing schene that would allow Al aska to nodel after

DR. HI NTERBERGER replied that Al aska was pretty well served by
the police's current detection testing procedures. He said he is
not aware that driving under the influence of marijuana has been
a mpjor public safety issue in the state. He pointed out that
CRMLA and CRCL are opposed to the notion of what is called "per
se" testing for a particular |evel of Tetrahydrocannabinol (THC)
presence as being a crinme. He explained that |evels of marijuana
met abolites and active ingredients in the person's system have
been shown to not in any way generally reflect inpairnment. He
stated that the issue needs to be considered carefully.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- January 22, 2015



SENATOR COGHI LL said the Legislature will consider that and he

will be looking very closely how other jurisdictions do it. He
added that many of Alaska's workplaces have zero-tolerance
policies and the initiative will change how testing deals wth

trace elenent detection rather than just inpairnent. He noted
that Comrercial Driver License (CDL) drivers have to abide by a
national drug testing requirenent. He asked Dr. Hinterberger for
his input on how the state should deal with the workplace as
well as testing options that are simlar to detecting al cohol.

DR. HI NTERBERGER replied that he will defer to M. Schulte to
address questions that pertain to the workpl ace.

9:12: 03 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted that the initiative bans the public
use of marijuana. He asked how Dr. Hinterberger defines public-
use.

DR. HI NTERBERGER answered that the initiative's sponsors felt
that the rul emaki ng-body should address the definition for
public-use. He noted that the public-use definition has cropped
up in other states. He stated that the ABC Board and other
authorities have recently investigated the approaches other
states have taken. He remarked that the public-use definition
wi |l depend very nuch on | ocal preferences.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if Dr. Hinterberger advocates that
the state |leave the communities to define public-use or does he
have a definition that he prefers the state enacts.

DR. H NTERBERGER replied that there is a great interest in
localities to define public-use as appropriate for their
i ndividual circunstances. He noted that the Mt-Su Valley has
expressed an interest in regulating |ocally.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if the definition of public-use is an issue
where the initiative's sponsors allow for greater governnental
i nvol venent. He noted that Dr. H nterberger nentioned that there
is avery limted role for governnent.

DR. HI NTERBERGER replied that there is a role by the state or
preferably by local entities to define what public consunption
iS.

9:14: 20 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- January 22, 2015



SENATOR MCGUI RE pointed out that Dr. Hinterberger stated at the
outset of his testinony that the majority of the initiative's
rul emaeking would be left up to the regulatory body, either the
ABC Board or sone other entity that the Legislature creates
given the tineline and the conplexity. She noted that Dr.
Hi nterberger declared that he did see a role for the
Legi sl ature. She asked what the initiative' s sponsors envisioned
as the role for the Legislature in the com ng nonths.

DR.  H NTERBERGER answered that there is a role for the
Legi sl ature. He pointed out that it would be desirable to revise
existing statutes by renoving any reference to crimnal
penalties for marijuana use and possession. He added that the
Legislature may be further involved if the draft regulations
that the regulatory-authority proposes requires additiona
| egislation for effective inplenmentation.

9:16: 00 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE clarified that as a voter in Alaska he did not
support the initiative. He stated that the initiative is now
pending |law and the Legislature will certainly try to guide the
will of the people coinciding with the legislators' and |ocal
governments' responsibilities in trying to nake the pending |aw
work as safely as possible. He remarked that the questions posed
by the commttee may be viewed as confrontational or
antagonistic by the public. He asserted that with any law or
statute, the commttee is just trying to probe and explore the
initiative. He pointed out that 53 percent of Alaskans are
anxi ous to see how the initiative noves forward.

SENATOR COGHI LL added that he concurred with Chair Stoltze and
noted that legislators are just trying to figure out how to make
the initiative work to the best of their abilities. He noted
that the initiative's sponsors gave sone |ocal control over sone
of the marketing, distribution, and the ability to make rules.
He pointed out that Al aska has given sonme conmmunities a |ocal
option regarding alcohol and asked if the initiative's sponsors
contenplated allowing local comunities to opt-out as wth
al cohol .

9:18: 36 AM

DR. H NTERBERGER replied that a |l|ocal opt-out option is
definitely an inportant part of the initiative. He affirned that
the local opt-out option was clearly stated in the initiative
that |ocal governnments of any sort would have the ability to
opt-out either by citizen initiative or by assenbly action. He
asserted that the initiative's sponsors intended to parallel

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- January 22, 2015



quite closely with the opt-out option for alcohol wth one
di fference pertaining to personal use and possession. He pointed
out that since the md-1970s, personal use and possession of
marijuana has been expressly allowed in Alaska by the Al aska
Suprene Court under the Raven Decision. He said because the
court found that marijuana is much Jless harnful to the
i ndividual and to the society than alcohol, individual private
use of marijuana has been protected and so there is nothing that
coul d have been done to alter that.

SENATOR COGHILL remarked that the initiative's idea is to
regulate nmarijuana |ike alcohol, but using marijuana is very
simlar to snoking cigarettes. He noted that there are many
pl aces that ban snmoking due to secondhand snoke. He said the
initiative may be going around the snoking ban. He asked for a
comment on wor kpl ace snoki ng, secondhand snoke, and the current
regul ation on cigarettes.

DR. H NTERBERGER replied that there is nothing in the initiative
that prevents a workplace or any other privately owned place
from prohibiting marijuana use. He stated that public use is
contrary to the intent of the initiative. He pointed out that
marijuana differs from tobacco in that wmarijuana is often
consuned in ways that do not involve snoking. He added that nore
peopl e are consum ng nmarijuana through edibles. He noted that an
exanple where an apartnent conplex mnmight prohibit tobacco
snoking, but there is no reason to prohibit overall marijuana
consunpti on.

9:21:40 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL noted that marijuana has health benefits as well
as health risks. He asked what marijuana's health risks are from
snoking as wel |l as ingesting edibles.

DR. HI NTERBERGER answered that the health risks from marijuana
consunption were the topic of a lot of discussion during the
canpai gn. He explained that snoking marijuana is not near the
same category of harm as tobacco snoke where there is no
association wth cancer and other problens associated wth
tobacco snoke. He said he is not aware of any evidence of harm
from noderately consumi ng marijuana in other ways.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked how marijuana potency |levels should be
| abel ed on edibles packaging and how potency |evels should be
tested to ensure safe |evels.

9: 24: 06 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- January 22, 2015



DR. H NTERBERGER replied that marijuana testing, packaging, and
| abeling are an inportant part of what develops in Al aska; they
are anong the primary benefits of having a legal regulated
mar ket as opposed to the current black narket system where
buyers have no idea what they are really getting. He said
Col orado and Washington have successful exanples of testing,
packaging, and labeling inplenentation. He reiterated that
potency level labeling is up to the rulemaking authorities to
propose whether the process should be a state function. He
surm sed that producers would contract wth private testing
| aboratories, a function that is clearly what the initiative's
sponsors want to see happen.

SENATOR COGHILL pointing out that the testing |aboratories and
mar keti ng descriptions noted by Dr. Hinterberger are regulatory

issues that wll be hard to attain wunder the initiative's
tinmeline constraints. He said setting up a whole testing
| aboratory industry with credible packaging will be difficult

He asked what Dr. Hinterberger's thoughts are regarding the
tinmelines demanded by the initiative.

DR. HI NTERBERGER replied that the tineline issue for putting
together the testing and packaging infrastructure by the private
sector is being underestimated. He pointed out that in other
states there is a pretty well established industry that is
responding very ninbly to changes in regulation and responding
to marijuana' s business opportunity. He asserted that he would
be very surprised if the private sector is not able to deal with
the issues that Senator Coghill raised in a tinmely fashion

SENATOR COGHILL remarked that he does not share Dr.
Hinterberger's optimism He stated that the Legislature wll
plug-away forward in a credible manner with the hope that if
there is a need for flexibility that the 1issue does not
necessitate litigation.

9:26: 44 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE remarked that there was a fairly enphatic
statenent that the Legislature had limts on its involvenent. He
asserted that there is a legislative role for |limting or
regul ati ng dosages and content for the purpose of public safety.
He asked if the initiative's sponsors felt that the Legislature
having a significant policy role was another area that mght be
t aboo.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 22, 2015



DR. HI NTERBERGER asserted that the initiative's sponsors felt
strongly that the rul emaki ng-body should deal w th packagi ng and
dosi ng.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked for clarification on Dr. Hinterberger's
definition for rulenmaking-body. He inquired if rulemaking-body
did not nmean a group other than an elected group such as the
Legi slature or a city council.

DR.  HI NTERBERGER answered that the rul emaking-body would refer
to the ABC Board as it stands now, unless the Legislature were
to create a separate nmarijuana control board.

CHAIR STOLTZE pointed out that the ABC Board gets their
direction from the legislative-body. He remarked that public
safety and the health aspect is an inportant part of the
initiative. He noted that Dr. Hi nterberger nentioned the Suprene
Court's role and voiced his desire not to litigate every aspect
if there is a concomtance of an agreenent on issues relating to
the initiative. He asserted that he would hate in good faith to
assert the Legislature's responsibility regulating dosages and
find out the initiative's sponsors are going to litigate against
the Legislature. He remarked that the reframe he has heard
i ndicates that any changes nmade will result in litigation. He
said he wants to operate in good faith as a |egislative-body
trying to inplenent the initiative and that precipitates his
desire for the committee to get clarified answers.

9:28: 59 AM

DR. HI NTERBERCER reiterated that that initiative's sponsors
believe that the regulation of dosage and packaging as a
function for a regulatory board |ike the ABC Board. He said the
Legislature's role is not a contentious issue and seens to be
very straight forward. He explained that the Legislature
certainly can have a role within the initiative's franework. He
remarked that the initiative's sponsors are sinply concerned
that the Legislature not try to involve itself with changing the

initiative's intent or doing anything <contrary to the
initiative's intent and standing in the way of the will of the
voters.

CHAI R STOLTZE replied that the Legislature understands that part
of the rhetoric and acknow edged that the Legislature is trying
to make the initiative work

SENATOR MCGUIRE noted that the initiative's sponsors may have
intended that a rulenmaking-body would take on the bulk of

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- January 22, 2015



regul atory issues and the Legislature would sinply |ook at
decrimnalization. She stated that the reality is not going to
be what the initiative's sponsors had intended. She pointed out
that the initiative itself is to regulate marijuana |ike al coho
and noted that over her 15 years in the Legislature, there has
been a bill every year in alcohol's Title 4 statutes. She
affirmed Chair Stoltze's conmment that the commttee's dialog is
not adversarial, but rather nore of a practicality that the
Legi sl ature does engage in nore policymaking on sone of the
rul emaki ng areas than what the initiative's sponsors m ght think
when it cones to alcohol and other controlled substances. She
surnmsed that the Legislature is not going to feel confortable
in leaving the ABC Board to decide THC Ilevels, dosages,
advertising, and zoning because the Legislature has not in the
past. She noted that the Legislature has |owered the blood-
al cohol level, enhanced restrictions on al cohol sales to mnors,
addressed happy hours, and |egislated brewpub guidelines. She
said she understands the sponsors' goal and noted that it is
human to say, "Regul ate everyone el se, govern everyone el se, but

we respectfully don't want the Legislature to cone in." She
reiterated that the voters have spoken and the initiative passed
to decrimnalize marijuana and the Legislature wll inplenent
the initiative. She detailed that the Senate Judiciary Conmittee
will decrimnalize marijuana, but to say that the Legislature

won't have any role looking at the high intoxicant |evels or
dosaging is fairly naive.

9:32:47 AM
DR. HI NTERBERGER stated that the initiative's sponsors do not
have an objection to the Legislature specifying limts on dosage
or specifying certain aspects of packaging as long as the
legislation is within the guidelines of the |anguage of the
initiative.

CHAIR STOLTZE remarked that Dr. Hinterberger's comrents brings
clarity to the Legislature's role as defined by the initiative's
sponsors.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if Dr. Hinterberger would recomrend
the Legislature to enact THC based inpairnment |levels for drivers
and if so, what THC |evel would be reconmmended. He inquired
about the issue of marijuana use at enploynent and noted that
some enpl oyers have zero tol erance policies, including nunicipal
workers. He detailed that marijuana can stay in a person's
system f or nonths.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- January 22, 2015



DR. H NTERBERGER replied that the initiative's sponsors strongly
oppose setting limts on THC inpairnment |evels. He pointed out
that "per se" |limts on THC content is sonething that varies
from one individual to another. He said people are actively
researching the relationship between THC and inpairnent. He
asserted that setting specific THC levels would be premature by
t he state.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there needs to be a state-leve
policy that addresses enploynent and sone enployers enacting
zero tolerance policies on nmarijuana use.

DR. HI NTERBERGER stated that there is nothing in the initiative
that prevents enployers from doing anything to alter their
current zero tolerance policies if the enployers feel zero
tolerance is necessary for their particular work force.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if Dr. Hinterberger was okay with a
person being dismssed from a zero tolerance enployer where a
test result shows a couple nanograns of THC from a hair sanple
due to marijuana use that occurred several nonths in the past.

9: 35:48 AM

DR. H NTERBERGER replied that personally he thinks that the
scenari o described would be inappropriate and all cases would
depend on the ~circunstances. He explained that the zero
tol erance scenario noted by Senator Welechowski gets beyond
anything to do wth the initiative.

CHAI R STOLTZE added that his intention is to provide a greater
public awareness by bringing in folks from industry, federal
government, and others that have established guidelines. He
noted that he has talked with organized |abor whose mssion it
is to put people to work and related that enpl oyees have argued
that they can snoke marijuana starting Novenber 5 and cannot be
tested anynore. He asserted that the Legislature needs to
achieve sone clarity for policy decisions as well as providing
education for the public because there is always a |ot of
excitenent and apprehension for a new law. He renmarked that
Alaska is not a nanny-state and the comrttee wants to |et
peopl e have the information to make the appropriate decision. He
said legislators are all concerned about Al askans not only
getting jobs, but keeping them He noted that union and non-
union trades have expressed their apprehensions. He asserted

that the commttee will spend time on enployers dealing wth
marijuana. He sunmmarized that the public will make their own
decisions, but the commttee wll provide information through

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- January 22, 2015



its testifiers to address the issue of public m sunderstanding
as to what is allowable.

9:37:57 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL explained that one of the things he |ooks at
when |ooking at a bill is, "Wat is repealed and what 1is

defined.” He noted that in the definition of marijuana there is
a reference to "salt." He asked that Dr. Hinterberger review the
sectional definitions and help the conmmttee understand, for
exanple, what a "salt" is.

DR. H NTERBERGER answered that "salt" is an odd usage that
pertains to a chem cal or pharmacological reference to certain
kind of derivative that m ght be used. He noted that the CRCL is
currently working on refining definitions that would be of use
to both the Legislature and potential people in the industry.

SENATOR COGHI LL replied that he is |ooks forward to the
definitions comng forward to the commttee. He remarked that
peopl e have a tendency to think of marijuana as sonething that
is snmoked and not take into account related fornms defined as
"derivative," "resin," "concentrate," or "salt."

CHAI R STOLTZE st at ed t hat one of t he conmittee's
responsibilities is understanding and if necessary, clarifying
some of the definitions for providing guidance. He renarked that
the definition for marijuana "derivatives" seens vague and he
will seek input from the Admnistration as well. He asked Dr.
Hinterberger if clarifying definitions and renoving anbiguities
was an area for the Legislature, Admnistration, and other

governing bodies that still conplies with the intent of the
vot ers.
9:40: 49 AM

DR. HI NTERBERGER answered yes.

SENATOR MCGQUIRE called attention to forming a new marijuana
control board. She noted that the initiative group initially had
taken no position on whether the rul emaking body was the ABC
Board. She revealed that the ABC Board had wupdated their
proposal to have a marijuana control board within the ABC Board
and there would be sone shared resources to keep the fiscal
costs down. She revealed that the ABC Board' s proposal for the
new board nenbers will consist of two public nmenbers, a couple
of industry nenbers, and maybe one conm ssioner or sonething
like that. She asked if Dr. H nterberger had an opinion on the
ABC Board's proposal.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- January 22, 2015



DR. H NTERBERGER replied that the proposal is sort of a hybrid
approach that the sponsors think makes quite a bit of sense in
the current political environment. He said the sponsors are open
to the proposal's approach, provided that it in no way delays
the tineline mandated by Ball ot Measure 2.

CHAI R STOLTZE specified that after reading the initiative, the
default position absent the Legislature acting wll be the ABC
Board. He asked if his summation was correct and was in |ine
wi th the sponsors' position.

DR. HI NTERBERGER answered yes. He specified that the intent of
the initiative is that the ABC Board be nanmed the default board.
He added that the initiative states that the Legislature can
create a separate marijuana control board. He said authorizing
the ABC Board to have a sub-board to regulate marijuana makes
sense.

9:43: 26 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE renmarked that his intent is to clarify some of the
things in the initiative for people who may not have read the
entire initiative prior to voting.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked that Dr. Hi nterberger address the
initiative's definitions regarding "personal use." He noted that
transferring one ounce or less of marijuana could be interpreted
to include | eaves, derivatives, or concentrates.

DR. HI NTERBERGER answered that the sponsors see it nakes sense
to regulate the anount of possession for concentrate differently
than for unprocessed narijuana.

SENATOR COGHILL remarked that he would take Dr. H nterberger's
comment as another place where the Legislature needs to |ook
into the details and maybe nake sonme recommendati ons.

CHAIR STOLTZE added that the Administration wll hopefully be
i nvol ved as wel I .

9:45: 13 AM

BRUCE SCHULTE, board nenber, The Coalition for Responsible
Cannabis Legislation (CRCL), Fairbanks, Alaska. He explained
CRCL's role and intentions as foll ows:

The CRCL was established as serving as a resource to
the Legislature and local governnments during the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- January 22, 2015



rul emaki ng process, so we hope to work with all of
those entities as the rul emaki ng plays out.

| would like to address a couple of things that cane
up during the conversation so far. Wth regard to
wor kpl ace testing, |I'm a comercial pilot, so [|'m
subject to testing and | take that very seriously. |
woul d certainly support and | recognize that certain
safety related fields should continue to drug test and
that is totally appropriate. | think that as we
navi gate this social change, sone enployers may choose
to nmodify their workplace drug testing and then they
shoul d have that right.

Wth regard to the local option, the opt-out option,
that is certainly articulated in the Ballot Measure
and we support that. W would hope though that |oca
governments would instead of sinply opting out of
various parts of this industry, as a default, we would
hope that they would instead try and regulate their
way to allowing the industry to exist in sone fashion
that said, | think there is a trenendous opportunity
at the state level to craft the rules in such a way
that smaller conmmunities that mybe don't have the
time or resources to develop their own rules, could
fall back on the statewi de rules and not have to opt-
out, but just could use the statew de rules.

9:47: 39 AM
Wth regard to snoke, this is a very broad topic and
|"m probably going to conme back to this again. A |ot
of us are famliar with the consunption of nmarijuana
as it was 30 years ago, that was ny reference point
comng into this canpaign, but the industry has
evol ved trenmendously. The snoking of leaf and flower

from the plants has actually di mnished, t he
consunpti on, t he preferred consunpti on has
transitioned to concentrates over the years and they
actually represent, in some cases, nore than half of
the market, so | think it is inmportant to recognize
t hat .

The CRCL absolutely supports reasonabl e guidelines on
packaging, on testing requirenents, and on | abeling.
We absolutely do not condone or support the marketing
of marijuana products to children and we woul d support
reasonable efforts to keep that from happening; that

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- January 22, 2015



said, we do think that there are existing nethods for
packaging that would neet the safety needs of the
public. W feel that the testing could very easily,
probably should indicate |evels of CBDs and THC in the
products, as well as perhaps testing for adulterates
like nmold, residual fertilizer and pesticides.

9:49: 06 AM
SENATOR COCHI LL asked for an explanation of acronynms used in the
initiative.

MR. SCHULTE explained that CBD stands for Cannabidiol, that's
the conponent in the plant that has nore nedicinal and
t herapeutic properties than psychoactive. He said THC is
Tet rahydrocannabi nol, which is the psychoactive conponent that
peopl e use nore for recreational purposes. He stated that CRCL
is working on a white-paper that clarifies many of the terns,
not just chemcally but also the derivatives as to what they
are, how they are derived, and how they are consuned. He said
CRCL found that in discussions with elected officials at every
level that a lot of the terminology is not clear and a |ot of
the practices are not clear. He stated that CRCL will present
the definition white-book to the committee the foll ow ng week.

CHAI R STOLTZE noted that Tetrahydrocannabi nol does not sound as
whol esome as THC.

MR SCHULTE conti nued his overview as foll ows:

A couple of other points, we have heard from | ocal
governnents that they would like the state to weigh in
on a definition of "public" versus "private" space. In
our view, some spaces where |arge gatherings mght
take place are in fact private in their nature. For
exanple, a bar that has an outdoor snoking area where
they have allowed their patrons to snoke cigarettes,
that would be a private space and it's our position
that spaces |like that if the business owner chooses,
m ght be available for the consunption of marijuana
products in sone form again, that's something for
further scrutiny of course, but we would hope to see
sonme sort of definition there and | think many of the
| ocal governnments would as well.

Wth regard to dosing and limts on edibles and so

forth, we agree that that is a concern, obviously it
is a concern. W found through the experience of

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- January 22, 2015



Col orado for exanple that 200 mlligrans (ng) of THC
in a single chocolate bar was excessive, S0 we support
and we would hope to help guide sone reasonable
limts. A definition for exanple on what constitutes a
serving and then how many servings could be contained
in a single package.

Wth regard to the rul emaking body, it has always been
CRCL's position that the best approach for a
successful marijuana industry is to have a dedicated
marijuana control board; wthin the initiative, that
falls by default to the ABC Board. The option renains
with the Legislature to designate a marijuana contro

board. We recogni ze though for many reasons, budgetary
and scheduling and so forth, sonme sort of a hybrid-
board m ght develop and we totally support that and by

a hybrid-board | nean a dedicated marijuana control
board housed within the ABC Board. | have spoken wth
Cynthia Franklin a nunber of tinmes, | found her to be

know edgeabl e, notivated, and we think she would be a
great resource in that rul emaking process. For severa
reasons we could envision a hybrid-board wth folks
dedi cated to marijuana rul emaking would perhaps be a
practical approach.

9:53:21 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if M. Schulte envisioned the board to be a
nor e aut ononous board fromthe politically notivated body of the
Legi slature and the Adm nistration.

MR. SCHULTE answered that CRCL respects and acknow edges that
el ected officials speak for their constituents. He asserted that
a dedicated rul emaki ng board would be nore ninble and nore able
to get into the rulemaking process wthin the nine nonth
tinmeline versus the nmuch shorter period that the Legislature has
to work with in conjunction with their other responsibilities.

CHAI R STOLTZE noted that voters rejected a ganbling initiative
six or eight years ago that attenpted to get the |egislative
bodies out of the process so that an independent board could
make the rules, regulations, and expansions. He stated that he
did not know and has not heard if the voters' expectations for
the initiative are for a nore autononmous board from their
el ected representatives. He remarked that ninbleness is often
equated with being |ess denocratic and often being autocratic
because people do not have to be asked in addition to no checks
or bal ances.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- January 22, 2015



MR. SCHULTE replied that CRCL's goal is to see the right
regul ations develop in a way that allows the industry to grow
and thrive in a regulated legitimte manner. He set forth that
one of the opportunities CRCL sees is to create a framework that
all ows and encourages the black market to transition over to a
| egiti mate busi ness nodel .

9:55:32 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE remarked that there is a reformative aspect to the
initiative that folks will be brought out of the shadows.

MR. SCHULTE answered yes. He said on occasion he has talked to
individuals in the black market who have expressed resistance,
but noted that many have enbraced the change to working within
the regulated nmarket as long as the regulations are not too
onerous, conplicated, or cunbersome. He said public safety is
obvi ously paranmount, but the challenge beyond public safety is
to create a safe rulemaking environnent that also allows the
marijuana industry to conpete with the black market. He said
CRCL believes that balance wll gradually dimnish the black
mar ket over the com ng years.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked to address the black narket versus grey
mar kets and inquired if government should take an enhanced role
and a heavier-hand against people growing outside of the
par anet ers.

MR. SCHULTE answered that CRCL sees two conponents specified in
Bal | ot Measure 2: personal cultivation and consunption, and the
commercial aspect. He stated that CRCL does not anticipate a | ot
nore involvenent from |law enforcenent. He said CRCL hopes that
t he rul emaki ng process would be sufficiently broad to allow the
industry to devel op and encourage the black nmarket operators to
nove to a legitimte business nodel so that |aw enforcenent does
not have to spend tinme with them He asserted that regulatory
enforcenment woul d be expected, but not necessarily involving | aw
enf orcement .

9:58: 34 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE stated that |I|arger businesses in the alcohol
i ndustry have used the ABC Board's enforcenent powers to go
after club licenses that included mlitary based organizations
that he is synpathetic to. He asserted that there should be
caution for an overly charged board outside of legislative
oversight. He asked if the marijuana industry will be dom nated
by big players. He said he sincerely doubts that the Anmerican

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- January 22, 2015



Legion in Chugiak is going to have a cannabis-room however, if
they did, wll they be snuffed out by big marijuana. He
summari zed that he gets a little nervous when a regulatory board
has too nuch power that the people's body is kept out. He said
the initiative is a people's voice and noted that the
Legislature is also the people's voice.

10: 01: 02 AM

MR, SCHULTE replied that from an industry perspective, CRCL
shares the sane concern. He revealed that the existing market is
fairly large and CRCL would like to see the industry change
their business nodel and conme out of the shadows. He said the
only way current operators will change is if they are not put
into conpetition with |arge outside nega-corporations. He said
from an industry perspective, CRCL would support reasonable
efforts to keep marijuana an Al aska-based industry to the
greatest extent possible. He asserted that CRCL does not support
businesses that are not going to operate in a regulated
environment and in sone cases, crimnal sanctions may be
appropriate. He said CRCL hopes that the vast majority would not
fall into the wunregulated market but wuld take to the
regul ati ons and change their business nodels to perhaps conbine
some snaller nmom and-pop operations into a slightly |arge one
He surmsed that the current market is not domnated by |arge
pl ayers, but consists of several hundred or nore snal
operators.

He remarked that on a side note that a nunber of CRCL's nenbers
are former mlitary personnel who use nmarijuana nedicinally to
treat Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD). He said he did not
know if it would be out of the question for a legion hall to
either sell or allow marijuana consunption on their property.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked about the issue with the regulatory board if
the Legislature has an appropriate role in setting standards of
conduct and weighing in on past acts or prior crimnal activity
for being involved in the industry.

10: 03: 57 AM

MR. SCHULTE answered yes. He said CRCL wants to see responsi bl e,
respectful citizens within the marijuana industry. He stated
that CRCL woul d probably support sone type of nerit-based system
where past crimnal behavior weighs against being eligibility
for a license.

SENATOR COGHILL stated that he questions the initiative's
definition where consumng marijuana in public is unlawful. He

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- January 22, 2015



asserted that enforcement will be difficult when a person can
consune marijuana in sonmething as snmall as a little chocolate
bar. He reiterated that he thought of marijuana being snoked
when he first read the initiative. He asked what M. Schulte
antici pated on public consunption when marijuana can be consuned
by either snoking or in a derivative form

10: 05: 29 AM

MR, SCHULTE replied that there are a nunber of derivative forns
of marijuana and offered that one of his concerns pertains to
being careful that |aw enforcenment is not put into a position of
trying to guess whether a chocolate bar is in fact infused with
marijuana or not. He noted that CRCL does not support public
snoking of marijuana and the act is clearly articulated in the
bill and is sonething that CRCL stands by. He said there are
scenari os where consunption is either through snoking, vaping,
or eating edibles. He noted that a chocolate bar with marijuana
could be consuned in a bar's designated snoking area or in a bar
that sells marijuana due to the establishnment's 21 and over
policy where IDs are checked at the door. He added that there
are other scenarios too where one might have a convention or
industry expo conducted at a private venue where sone |imted
consunption might be appropriate where other factors are
recogni zed. He noted that allowing marijuana consunption at an
i ndustry expos would be hel pful for the players in the industry.
He sunmarized that people prefer to consune derivatives and oil
extracts in vapor form He explained that vaporizers have very
little residual snoke from organic material and noted that the
technology is state of the art in marijuana consunption. He said
vaping marijuana was a bit of an epiphany for him and one of the
reasons why he believes CRCL would be helpful in explaining the
vaporizing practices for |awrakers.

10: 08: 07 AM

SENATOR COGHILL renmarked that the public consunption of
marijuana is one of those areas that would be hammered-out if it
was going through a regular conmttee, but the comittee is
presented with a lawful act that consuming marijuana in public
is unlawful, period. He asserted that the commttee has to
figure out what consunption in public mans and attach a
definition to Section 900 in the act. He said CRCL's white-paper
will assist the commttee.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that marijuana consunption has referenced
tobacco use at tines. He pointed out that "public" as used in
cigarette consunption ternms requires inbibers to stand out in
the cold. He remarked that cigarette consuners nay take unbrage

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- January 22, 2015



if marijuana users are allowed to consunme indoors in public. He
noted that the commttee process probably would have had a |ot
of public input and suggestions on public consunption, but he
conceded that the comrmittee is dealing with a constitutionally
establ i shed concept regarding the initiative.

10: 10: 00 AM
MR. SCHULTE sunmarized that CRCL is working on its white-paper
and will present a copy to the commttee. He added that CRCL

wel comes the opportunity to work with the Legislature and |oca

governnments as the marijuana rules are devel oped. He said CRCL
recogni zes that the elected officials do represent the public.
He set forth that CRCL supports and agrees with a lot of the
public and health concerns that were raised during the canpaign

He asserted that CRCL firmy believes that the legitimte public
concerns can be addressed. He said CRCL thinks that there are
nodel s and exanples elsewhere in the country that can be
adopted. He summari zed that CRCL hopes that Al aska can becone a
nodel for marijuana | egislation going forward.

CHAIR STOLTZE remarked that several people involved in the
i ndustry commented that any changes nmade by the Legislature wll
result in a lawsuit. He asked how M. Schulte intended to
cont est any changes should the Legislature abridge the
initiative's fairly strict limts.

MR. SCHULTE replied that the initiative' s backers prefer to work
together with the Legislature. He noted that nost of the
contentious issues raised are based on inconplete infornmation.
He asserted that the feeling is once the conplete information is
out there and once the processes' products are understood, there
are solutions for alnost every one of the issues that have cone
up. He remarked that sonme of the issues are a little nore
awkward than others; for exanple, the definition of public
versus private space is not an easy one to answer. He asserted
that as long as the fundanental framework of the initiative's
intent is not changed, the initiative' s backers do not envision
going to court and would rather work with the Legislature than
to have the initiative becone contentious at any |evel.

10: 12: 53 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE added that the Legislature will work at its best
level to work through the comobn sense conpronises and try to
clarify the issues. He affirmed that his concern relates to
affiliates outside of the initiative's sponsors who will chose
to litigate due to initiative changes as well as not being
involved in the discussion. He asserted that the Legislature is

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- January 22, 2015



trying to operate on good faith to help inplenent the law. He
pointed out that the Legislature is going to rely on a lot of
good faith in doing what is best in the public safety aspects as
well as conplying with the intent of the initiative. He stated
that he hopes the process remains in good faith. He said he
knows M. Schulte and remarked that he can trust his word. He
admtted that as in any industry, there are other segnents that
have every right to go out and do what they w sh; however, they
do not operate on the sanme |evel of integrity.

MR. SCHULTE reiterated that the initiative's sponsors would much
rather work in a cooperative manner wth state and |ocal
governments. He remarked that the initiative's sponsors cannot
control every player in the industry and conceded that some may
take issue with one rule or another. He envisioned tinmes when
the initiative's sponsors will side with the Legislature or wth
the rulemaking board in opposing a specific issue from an
opposing viewpoint. He summrized that CRCL is gathering and
vetting input from its nenbers in order to bring forward
recomendations that represent the industry's best possible
Vi ewpoi nt .

10: 15: 23 AM

SENATOR COGHILL noted that he appreciates M. Schulte's
coorments. He referenced the "personal use" section in the
initiative, Section 020, and pointed out that the definition of
marijuana allows for an ounce or less to be transferred in
addition to possessing six inmmature plants w thout selling them
He reiterated that his initial understanding enconpassed an
ounce of marijuana |eaves, but the definition also pertains to
concentrate, derivatives, or salts. He asked that M. Schulte to
expl ai n what an ounce of marijuana neans.

CHAIR STOLTZE remarked that maybe M. Schulte can clarify
whether the initiative's sponsors neant the product or if he
believes the derivatives should be treated differently in
regul ati on or statute.

SENATOR COGHI LL renmarked that Chair Stoltze's coment was a good
point. He asserted that marijuana under the definition includes
all of the forns that he not ed.

CHAIR STOLTZE declared that they can put their intent on the
record.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- January 22, 2015



SENATOR COGHILL replied that is fine. He asked M. Schulte if he
had any coments on his concern regarding marijuana s broad
definition.

10: 17: 02 AM

MR, SCHULTE replied the he would not want to attenpt to change
the intent of the initiative; however, he pointed out that
Senator Coghill raised a good point.

He explained that an ounce of hash oil would be an incredibly
expensive commodity and remarked that he is not sure that hash

oil will be exchanged between private individuals due to cost.
He stated that CRCL would support a rule whereby the sale of
hash oil would have a maxi num anount at a retail |evel. He added
that he does not know what a maximum armount nay be. He said
several ounces of hash oil will probably be transferred between
a hash oil extractor and a |licensed edibles producer. He
sumarized that wholesale and retail transfers have to be

acknow edged in addition to person-to-person.

He referenced tal k about butane hash oil and explained that the
extraction process uses butane. He set forth that CRCL does not
support the home use of butane extraction due to the conpound's
volatility. He asserted that CRCL believes that hash oil can be
produced in a controlled environment using appropriate equi pment
and trained personnel. He stated that incidents of fires or
expl osions associated with hone use will sinmply go away, nmuch
the way hone distilleries and bootl egging went anay with the end
of Prohi bition.

10: 19: 16 AM

SENATOR COGHILL revealed that Colorado had a challenge with its
"gifting" provisions where taxation was avoided. He explained
that people in Colorado paid a cover charge at a location where
marijuana was "gifted" upon entry. He pointed out that taxation
becomes a bigger question due to marijuana's definition that
goes beyond an ounce of |eaves and stal ks.

MR. SCHULTE replied that marijuana's cultivation is a key point.
He explained that the initiative does give individuals the right
to cultivate up to six plants. He noted that growing plants is
an expensive proposition that requires a lot of equipnent,
space, tinme, and expertise to do it well. He said CRCL hopes
that smaller growers with 50 to 100 plants woul d neet the market
need of those individuals that are just |ooking for an ounce or
half ounce of whatever product. He remarked that CRCL is
concerned that folks will be taking their six plants at hone and

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- January 22, 2015



selling what they grow to friends through some sort of
di si ngenuous mnechanism He hoped that individuals selling what
they grow at honme would be relatively mnor if small operators
are allowed to participate in a regul ated i ndustry.

SENATOR COGHI LL remarked that worst case scenarios have to be
taken into account when scrutinizing texts of |aws. He pointed
out that M. Schulte provided a personal use exanple where a
person 21 years or older could also nean a group of people or an
establishment. He advised that regulations nust be thought
t hrough for their real meaning.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if the snoking ban in Anchorage and
sonme other communities would not apply to marijuana.

10: 22: 32 AM

MR. SCHULTE answered that he believes the snmoking ban in
Anchor age includes encl osed spaces; for exanple, the inside of a
restaurant or a bar. He said he is not sure CRCL envisions
stretching or nodifying the snoking bans to exclude marijuana
He stated that CRCL hopes that establishnments wth designated
out door snoking areas have the leeway to allow the consunption
of marijuana in sone form He specified that snoking or vaping
woul d possibly fall to local jurisdictions to define or for the
busi ness owner to choose.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if a business should have the leeway to
prohibit marijuana if they allow tobacco.

MR. SCHULTE answered yes. He explained that he wultimtely
supports the rights of a business to do what they see as best on
their property. He said the best analogy is sonme businesses may
choose to ban the consunption of alcohol on their property and
t hose businesses should legitimately have the right to ban the
consunption of marijuana as well.

CHAIR STOLTZE pointed out that the initiative's sponsors
canpaigned that alcohol 1is wrse than marijuana and M.
Schulte's previous statenent sounds |like a fertile ground for
[itigation.

MR. SCHULTE replied that he is not sure who would bring the
|awsuit. He said CRCL would find it hard to support a frivol ous
| awsuit that was started by an individual. He asserted that CRCL
woul d support the rights of the business owner over those of the
patron in the scenario that was descri bed.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -23- January 22, 2015



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI explained that the Anchorage ordinance
defines snoking as foll ows:

Smoki ng nmeans inhaling, exhaling, burning or carrying
any |ighted tobacco product.

He set forth that marijuana consunption would not fall under the
Anchor age ordi nance.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that marijuana consunption would also not
fall under the Pal mer ordi nance as well.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI noted that he does not know how other
ordi nances read or how Senator M cciche's ordinance reads. He
asked if M. Schultz believes that marijuana should be applied
to the snoking legislation or ordinances that are enacted
t hroughout the state.

10: 25: 55 AM

MR. SCHULTE replied that the discussion regarding e-cigarettes
could be expanded to marijuana. He explained that nmarijuana
vaporizers essentially use the same technology as e-cigarettes;
they are primarily closed systens that produce very little
residual snoke that would inpact patrons. He said he would
envision a scenario where both e-cigarettes and nmarijuana
vapori zers are all owabl e.

CHAIR STOLTZE remarked that M. Schulte and Dr. Hinterberger
will have future opportunities to testify before the committee
as spokespeopl e and sponsors of a bill.

SENATOR COGHILL renarked that the Legislature is between
Al aska's voters and the federal governnent. He specified that
the <challenges pertain to banking restrictions because of
guar antees, security of cash, taxation, and the requirenents on
the marijuana businesses. He asked if the initiative's sponsors
have thought through the chall enges that he descri bed.

MR, SCHULTE answered that CRCL is acutely aware of the
challenges at the federal level. He said CRCL is working with
national organizations and is hoping to work wth Al aska's
congressional delegation to renedy the noted challenges. He
conceded that banking laws and IRS rules are problematic and
CRCL is hopeful that nodifications will be allowed.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked that any forth comng information be
presented to the commttee as well as recommendations on |aws

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 24- January 22, 2015



that m ght have to be nodified to make sure Al aska conplies with
federal |aw.

MR. SCHULTE replied that CRCL wel cones the opportunity to work
with the Legislature going forward. He reiterated that CRCL wll
provide the commttee wth information and remain ready during
t he rul emaki ng process.

CHAIR STOLTZE commented that the best advice wll help the
Legislature to navigate through the challenge with contradictory
bodi es of |aw.

10: 29: 47 AM

RACHELLE YEUNG Legislative Analyst, State Policies Departnent,
Marijuana Policy Project (MPP), Washington, D.C. She read a MP
overvi ew statement as foll ows:

MPP has been working with activists in Al aska for nmany
years. The Marijuana Policy Project is a nonprofit
organi zation. W are the |argest advocacy organization
in the country working towards marijuana policy
reform W have been working with activists such as
Dr. Hionterberger and M. Schulte in Alaska for many
years. MPP supports local activists who would like to
reformtheir own nmarijuana | aws.

She sumarized that she |ooks forward to working wth the
Legi sl ature and ot her rul emaki ng bodi es t owar ds t he
i npl enentation of Ballot Measure 2.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted that MPP is on the federal |evel and
has probably dealt with banking in other states. He said his
understanding is it is a violation to use credit cards and
checks to pay for marijuana. He asked what the state may do to
hel p get around not being able to pay for nmarijuana with check
or credit card.

M5. YEUNG replied that there are several solutions that other
states are looking into. She related that state-licensed credit
unions have been forned in Colorado and are awaiting federal
approval for <certain aspects. She revealed that the credit
unions in Colorado will be able to function as a financial
institution in which marijuana businesses can receive banking
services. She revealed that a bank in Oregon just announced that
it is wlling to openly work with marijuana businesses. She
sumari zed that MPP is working with Congress toward nore tenable
banki ng sol uti ons.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -25- January 22, 2015



10: 33: 39 AM

SENATOR MCGQUIRE noted that a letter was received from a
constituent which asked if |legislative support for nmarijuana
| egalization interferes wth the oath taken by senators to
uphold the state and federal constitutions and rules. She asked
what advice was given to Colorado and Wshington State
| awmakers.

She called attention to Alaska's transportation issues and
chal l enges due to the state's vast geographical areas. She noted
that some locations are only accessible by boats that use
federal waters or aircraft that are regulated by the Federal
Avi ation Adm nistration (FAA). She noted the conundrumin states
where people have a right to use marijuana, but they have to use
transportation nethods that cone through federal entities that
have federal jurisdiction

10: 35: 28 AM

M5. YEUNG replied that she does not think there is a conflict
between the duties of elected representatives to uphold federa
| aws and constitution as well as representing the will of the
voters in a particular state. She explained that the Federal
Controll ed Substances Act is very explicit about the fact that
that federal law is not intended to occupy the entire field of
drug policy and a lot of space is left for states to interpret
their own controlled substances act as they will. She specified
that crimnal lawis generally left up to the state, so renoving
crimnal penalties for the possession of certain substances
woul d be entirely consistent with the division of powers between
states and the federal governnment.

She addressed the transportation issue and noted that the
Departnent of Justice (DQJ) issued a nmenp in August 2013 that
outlined their 8 enforcenment policies. She noted that DQJ's 8
enforcement priorities did not include marijuana transit from
one legal state to another. She said MPP is hopeful that the
| esser issue of transferring within one's state would not be an
i ssue for federal |aw enforcenent.

10: 37: 12 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE said the comrmittee will seek clarification from
other entities on Ms. Yeung's conments.

SENATOR MCGQUI RE noted that the issue of state-to-state has not
been clarified and is still prohibited. She specified that the

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 26- January 22, 2015



intrastate travel wusing federally controlled navigable waters
and airspace requires further clarification.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that Alaska has different Kkinds of
governnents within the state that pertains to reservations and
tribal entities. He asked how Col orado and WAshi ngton State have
addressed taxation and rul es regardi ng other governnent entities
within their states.

M5. YEUNG replied that Chair Stoltze's question is tinely given
that DQJ just issued a recent nenop extending the flexibility
given to states towards experinmenting with their own narijuana
policies towards tribal governments as well.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if M. Yeung could share the information
with the committee. He noted that he was not aware of the noted
meno from DAJ.

10: 39: 37 AM

M5. YEUNG replied that the DQJ neno wll be forwarded to the
coormittee and she encouraged the Legislature to seek
clarification.

CHAIR STOLTZE remarked that the experience based on states
involving in ganbling and cigarette sales is sonmething that the
Legislature needs to be aware of. He asserted that he is not
trying to cause tensions between different entities. He set
forth that Don Mtchell could provide the Legislature with sone
guidance on the issue with marijuana policies towards tribal
gover nnents.

10: 41: 28 AM
M5. YEUNG sunmmarized MPP's role as foll ows:

MPP is not here to subvert the role of local activists
and the canpaign in assisting to inplenent this |aw
W sinply want to serve as a resource and provide
background and perspective for how these |aws have
worked out in other states. | would also like to note
that we want to ensure that in inplenmenting Measure 2,
the legal protections legalizing adult possession of
marijuana are not repealed or accidently repealed and
replaced with an affirmative defense. | note this
because the nedical marijuana |aw that was passed many
years ago in Alaska was replaced wth a nere
affirmati ve defense and it led to the thwarting of the
will of the voters. So we just want to be very careful

SENATE STA COW TTEE -27- January 22, 2015



with how the legalization aspect of the neasure is
interpreted. | would also like to address a previous
gquestion by Senator Coghill about the role of the
Legislature in clarifying the definition of marijuana,
of course there are certain aspects that do require
addi ti onal clarity such as what one ounce of
concentrates or extracts could nean, but t he
definition of marijuana that was passed by the voters
itself should not be altered, all of those elenents
i ncl uded under the definition of marijuana appears to
be the wll of the voters that all of them be
| egalized and be available for adult possession and
purchase. O course we would like to provide as nuch
assi stance as possible both to the Legislature and the
rul emaki ng body in neeting your deadlines tinelines as
approved by the voters of Al aska.

10: 44: 04 AM
DR H NTERBERGER sunmmari zed as foll ows:

Qur primary interest here is seeing that the intent of
the initiative is protected and that the will of the
voters as expressed in voting in favor of this
initiative, keeping in mnd that there was a huge
amount of debate about this in advance of the election
and | think we have to assune that people knew what
they were voting for when they voted to |I|egalize
marijuana in all of the forns that are described in
the initiative. W want to see that that gets
i npl enented, that's our primary concern and as M.
Yeung stated, meking sure all of the fornms of
marijuana described in the initiative are nade
avai lable in appropriate manner and that the tineline
specified in the initiative is adhered to.

CHAI R STOLTZE acknowl edged that the public was keenly aware of
what the initiative's sponsors were doing in legalizing
marijuana. He stated that the commttee is going to be nostly
di scussing comercializing marijuana and that is where there is
some anbi guity.

DR.  HI NTERBERBER responded that the public voted wth ful
knowl edge that they were legalizing the commercial availability
of marijuana and marijuana products with the goal of taking it
out of the hands of the black nmarket and creating a regul ated,
i censed, tax payi ng market.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 28- January 22, 2015



CHAI R STOLTZE announced that the next comittee neeting wll
include testinony from the Walker administration in addition to
representatives fromthe departnents of: Revenue, Public Safety,
Law, and Commrerce. He added that M. Jesse, Executive Director
of the Mental Health Trust, wll also participate. He explained
that the commttee's initial neetings have invited-testinony and
his intention is to have public-testinmny. He summarized that
the State Affairs Conmttee is not going to introduce a bill. He
specified that the commttee is going to deal wth bills that
are already introduced and help facilitate the process as it
goes to the next commttees of jurisdiction. He explained that
addressing Ballot Masure 2 is primarily going to be an
exploratory education and a process for input for involved
parties with the commttee facilitating the continuation of the
debate and how the Legislature inplenents the people's |law. He
said the conmttee wel conmes suggestions from people who wish to
testify in order to aid in the deliberation of a conplex issue.

10:48: 11 AM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
Chair Stoltze adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee hearing at 10:48 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -29- January 22, 2015



